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PROSPECTUS

$200,000,000 7% Senior Notes due 2012
$350,000,000 83/8 % Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014

The 7% senior notes due 2012 were issued in exchange for the 7% senior notes due 2012 originally issued on December 23, 2004. The 8 3/8%
senior subordinated notes due 2014 were issued in exchange for the 8 3/8% senior subordinated notes due 2014 originally issued on
December 23, 2004.

The senior notes will mature on December 15, 2012 and the senior subordinated notes will mature on December 15, 2014.

Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. may redeem some or all of the senior notes at any time at the redemption prices described in this prospectus.
Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. may redeem some or all of the senior subordinated notes at any time prior to December 15, 2009 at a price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes, plus a make-whole premium. Thereafter, Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. may redeem
some or all of the senior subordinated notes at the redemption prices described in this prospectus.

The senior notes are Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. s unsecured obligations and rank equally with all of Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. s
existing and future senior obligations and senior to Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. s subordinated indebtedness. The senior subordinated notes
are Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. s unsecured senior subordinated obligations and are subordinated to all of its existing and future senior
indebtedness including the senior notes. The notes are effectively subordinated to Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. s existing and future secured
indebtedness to the extent of the assets securing that indebtedness. The notes are guaranteed by Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc., our parent
company, and Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. s direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries that guarantee its obligations under the senior credit
facilities. These guarantees are unsecured and, with respect to the senior notes, rank equally with all existing and future senior obligations of the
guarantors and, with respect to the senior subordinated notes, are subordinated to all existing and future senior obligations of the guarantors. The
guarantees are effectively subordinated to existing and future secured indebtedness of the guarantors to the extent of the assets securing that
indebtedness.

See _Risk Factors beginning on page 12 for a discussion of certain risks that you should consider in connection
with an investment in the notes.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the notes or
passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This prospectus has been prepared for and will be used by Goldman, Sachs & Co. in connection with offers and sales of the notes in
market-making transactions. These transactions may occur in the open market or may be privately negotiated at prices related to prevailing
market prices at the time of sales or at negotiated prices. Goldman, Sachs & Co. may act as principal or agent in these transactions. We will not
receive any proceeds of such sales.

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

The date of this prospectus is April 9, 2009
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You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different
information. The prospectus may be used only for the purposes for which it has been published and no person has been authorized to
give any information not contained herein. If you receive any other information, you should not rely on it. Goldman, Sachs & Co. is not
making an offer of these securities in any state where the offer is not permitted.
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Some market data and other statistical information used throughout this prospectus is based on data available from CSM Worldwide, an
independent market research firm. Other data are based on our good faith estimates, which are derived from our review of internal surveys, as

well as third party sources. Although we believe all of these third party sources are reliable, we have not independently verified the information
and cannot guarantee its accuracy and completeness. To the extent that we have been unable to obtain information from third party sources, we
have expressed our belief on the basis of our own internal analyses and estimates of our and our competitors products and capabilities. The
principal shareholders of Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. s, our parent company, are affiliates of The Cypress Group L.L.C. and GS Capital
Partners 2000, L.P., whom we refer to as our Sponsors. Each of the Sponsors, including their respective affiliates, currently owns approximately
49.3% of the equity of Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. See Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters.
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus. This summary may not contain all of the information that may be
important to you in making your investment decision. You should read this entire prospectus, including the financial data and related notes and
section entitled Risk Factors, before making an investment decision. As used in this prospectus, the terms we, us  Cooper-Standard
and the Company all refer to Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc., its subsidiaries and Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc., its parent, on a
consolidated basis, unless the context requires otherwise.

The Company

We are a leading global manufacturer of fluid handling, body sealing, and noise, vibration and harshness control ( NVH ) components, systems,
subsystems, and modules, primarily for use in passenger vehicles and light trucks for global original equipment manufacturers ( OEMs ) and
replacement markets. Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. conducts substantially all of its activities through its subsidiaries.

We believe that we are the largest global producer of body sealing systems, one of the two largest North American producers in the NVH control
business, and the second largest global producer of the types of fluid handling products that we manufacture. We design and manufacture our
products in each major region of the world through a disciplined and consistent approach to engineering and production. We operate in 68
manufacturing locations and ten design, engineering, and administrative locations in 18 countries around the world.

Approximately 76% of our sales in 2008 were to OEMs, including Ford, General Motors, Chrysler (collectively, the Detroit3 ), Audi, BMW,
Fiat, Honda, Mercedes Benz, Porsche, PSA Peugeot Citroén, Renault/Nissan, Toyota, and Volkswagen. The remaining 24% of our 2008 sales
were primarily to Tier I and Tier II automotive suppliers. In 2008, our products were found in 22 of the 25 top-selling models in North America
and in 24 of the 25 top-selling models in Europe.

Our net sales have grown from $1.8 billion for the year ended December 31, 2005, to $2.6 billion for the year ended December 31, 2008. See
Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Company Overview.

Acquisition History

On December 23, 2004, Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. acquired the automotive segment of Cooper Tire & Rubber Company (the 2004
Acquisition ) and began operating the business on a stand-alone basis primarily through its principal operating subsidiary, Cooper-Standard
Automotive Inc. See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (especially Notes 8 and 17, respectively) for further descriptions of the Senior
Notes, Senior Subordinated Notes, and Senior Credit Facilities and of the equity contributions relating to the 2004 Acquisition.

In July 2005, the Company acquired Gates Corporation s Enfriamientos de Automoviles manufacturing operations in Atlacomulco, Mexico (the
Atlacomulco business ). The Atlacomulco business manufactures low pressure heating and cooling hose, principally for the OEM automotive
market.

In February 2006, the Company acquired the automotive fluid handling systems business of ITT Industries, Inc. ( FHS or the FHS business ). See
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (especially Note 3).

In March 2007, the Company acquired Automotive Components Holdings El Jarudo manufacturing operations located in Juarez, Mexico (the El
Jarudo business ). The El Jarudo business manufactures automotive fuel rails.

In August 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of nine Metzeler Automotive Profile Systems sealing systems operations in Germany,
Italy, Poland, Belarus, and Belgium, and a joint venture interest in China ( MAPS or the MAPS business ) from Automotive Sealing Systems S.A.
( ASSSA ). See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (especially Note 3).

In December 2007, the Company acquired the 74% joint venture interest of ASSSA in Metzeler Automotive Profiles India Private Limited
( MAP India ), a leading manufacturer of automotive sealing products in India. See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (especially Note
3).
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Business Environment and Industry Trends:

During 2008, our revenues were adversely affected by a significant decline in the worldwide automotive production levels, particularly during
the second half of the year. Production volumes during the first half of the year were relatively stable. During the second half of 2008, however,
overall negative macroeconomic conditions, including disruptions in the financial markets, led to severe declines in consumer confidence which
significantly impacted the demand for, and production of, motor vehicles.

A number of key industry developments and trends have coincided with, or resulted in whole or in part from, these negative macroeconomic
conditions. These developments and trends include:

A deterioration in the financial condition of certain of our customers which has caused them to implement restructuring initiatives,
including in some cases significant capacity reductions and/or reorganization under bankruptcy laws. In certain cases, our customers have
asked for and received financial assistance from government sources. Their ability to obtain further assistance in the extent necessary is
unknown and creates additional uncertainty.

A decline in market share, significant production cuts and permanent capacity reductions by some of our largest customers, including the
Detroit 3.

Continuing pricing pressures from OEMs.

Growing concerns over the economic viability of certain of our suppliers whose financial stability, access to credit and liquidity is
uncertain due to negative macroeconomic conditions and industry conditions.

A shift in consumer preference and vehicle production mix, particularly in North America, from sport utility vehicles and light trucks to
more fuel efficient vehicles, cross-over utility vehicles and passenger cars; and a shift in consumer preference and vehicle production mix,
particularly in Europe, from large and mid-size passenger cars to smaller cars.

Changes in foreign currency exchange rates that affect the relative competitiveness of manufacturing operations in different geographic
markets.
Strategy:

We have undertaken a number of initiatives, and will be implementing additional measures, to reduce our cost and operating structures in order
to position the Company to operate successfully under the difficult macroeconomic and industry conditions that adversely impacted us during
the second half of 2008 and are likely to persist to a degree, and over a period of time, that is difficult to predict. At the same time, we intend to
solidify our position as one of the world s leading automotive suppliers of body sealing, noise, vibration and harshness (NVH) control, and fluid
handling components and systems. Our focus is on the following key areas:

Reconfiguring our Business and Cost Structure as Appropriate in the Changing Industry Environment

In the second half of 2008, we announced the closure of two manufacturing facilities, one located in Australia and the other in Germany. See
Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (especially the Restructuring subsection) for additional

information concerning these and other restructuring actions undertaken by the Company since the 2004 Acquisition. We plan to continue to

identify and implement restructuring opportunities so that the Company is appropriately configured in the rapidly changing industry

environment.
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We have also taken a number of other actions reducing the size of the Company s salaried and hourly workforce and adjusting work hours,
wages, salaries and benefits at all levels of the Company, including the following actions:

Implementation of across-the-board 10% reductions in the base salaries of the Company s salaried employees in the United
States and Canada effective January 2009 through the first half of the year.

Implementation of workforce reductions, reduced workweeks and mandatory time-off in many of the Company s locations.

Implementation of short work weeks, voluntary salary reduction programs and other actions in Europe to effectuate cost-savings in
accordance with applicable laws.

The freezing of benefit accruals in certain defined benefit retirement plans, and the suspension of matching contributions under the
Company s defined contribution plans for 20009.

Reduction and delay of capital spending by raising return on investment hurdles.
On March 26, 2009, the Company announced the implementation of a comprehensive plan involving the discontinuation of its global product
line operating divisions, formerly called the Body & Chassis Systems division and the Fluid Systems division, and the establishment of a new
operating structure organized on the basis of geographic regions. The Company will now operate from two divisions, North America and
International (covering Europe, South America and Asia). Under the plan, the Company s reporting segments, as well as its operating structure,
have changed. This new operating structure allows the Company to maintain its full portfolio of global products and provide unified customer
contact points, while better managing its operating costs and resources in severe industry conditions. It will result in a reduction in the
Company s worldwide salaried workforce of approximately 20 percent.

Solidifying global leadership position with emphasis on high growth vehicles around the world

We plan to maintain our leading positions with the Detroit 3, with particular emphasis on the vehicles they produce globally, and to continue to
strengthen our relationships with European and Asian manufacturers as their market share increases. Many conquest business opportunities are
becoming available worldwide as a result of significant automotive supply base consolidations. China and India will continue to be regions of
emphasis as the light vehicle market is projected to grow in those regions as their economies continue to develop.

Further Developing Technologies and Customer Service

To further strengthen our customer relationships, we plan to continue to focus on innovative product development, program management,
engineering excellence, and customer service, all of which enhance the value we offer our customers. We will continue to seek customer
feedback with respect to quality, manufacturing, design and engineering, delivery, and after-sales support in an effort to provide the highest level
of customer service and responsiveness. We believe our efforts have been successful to date and we continue to be awarded content on our
customer s new programs. We have also achieved several recent

Table of Contents 6



Edgar Filing: Cooper-Standard Automotive FHS Inc. - Form 424B3

Table of Conten

successes with other OEMs, such as Nissan, Toyota, Honda, Audi, and Volkswagen. Further, our acquisition of MAPS diversified our customer
base with new key customers such as Fiat, Audi, BMW, Daimler and Volkswagen Group. In Asia, and particularly in China, we have been
successful in entering new markets and are developing a substantial manufacturing and marketing presence to serve local OEMs and to follow
our customers as they target these markets. We operate eight manufacturing locations in China, which provide products and services to both
Chinese OEMs and our traditional customers.

Targeting fuel efficient vehicles, global platforms and certain high volume vehicles

With the recent shift in customer preferences, we intend to target small car, hybrid and alternative powertrains and increase the amount of
content we provide to each of these segments. Given our many innovations in products which help conserve fuel and reduce emissions, many
customers are looking to us to assist them in providing lighter, more fuel efficient vehicles that meet consumer demand, as well as more
stringent emissions standards.

Further expanding into the small car and hybrid market will allow us to gain market share, create greater economies of scale, and provide more
opportunities to partner with customers on future generation designs of small cars, hybrids and alternative powertrains, as we can assist with
newly introduced lightweight high- performance plastic materials for use in our hose and body sealing products and fuel rail assemblies,
improve fuel flow and help reduce fuel consumption. Our engineering teams have also partnered with customers to deliver state-of-the-art
thermal management solutions to enhance cooling effectiveness for the electric motors and batteries of their new hybrid vehicle platforms.

Global platforms which feature the same vehicle design produced in multiple regions of the world is a growing trend as it enables OEMs to
reduce cost by leveraging global engineering, purchasing and supply base synergies. These types of programs allow us to showcase our
production capabilities in all major regions of the world which has been a key element in winning business on these platforms. The combination
of our global footprint, experience in global program management and worldwide customer service puts us in a leadership position as a proven
supplier for future global programs.

While smaller cars and crossover vehicles have grown in popularity, certain large car and truck platforms (pick-up trucks) continue to be in
demand and remain important as we look to maximize content and utilize our lean manufacturing program to continuously improve processes
and increase productivity on these platforms. An example of this: The Ford F-150 continues to be a popular selling truck. Our overall content on
the F-150 consists of the following products: engine mounts, transmission mounts, engine and transmission brackets (NVH products), appliqué,
inner belts, outer belts, below belt brackets, body seals, door seals, glass runs, cutline seals, roof rail secondary seals, hood to radiator seals
(sealing products), fuel tank bundle, fuel rails, chassis fuel bundle, brake line assemblies (fuel and brake products), radiator hose assemblies,
heater hose assemblies, transmission oil cooler line assemblies (thermal management products) and engine emission tubes.

Through our extensive product portfolio, innovative solutions for emerging technology trends and broad global capabilities, we expect to
continue winning new business across all major regions and with all major automakers in the global market.

Developing new modular solutions and other value-added products

In addition to products for fuel efficiency and lower emissions, we also believe that significant opportunities exist to grow by providing
complete sub-systems, modules, and assemblies. As a leader in design, engineering, and technical capabilities, we are able to focus on improving
products, developing new technologies, and implementing more efficient processes in each of our product lines. Our body sealing products,
which are part of our body & chassis product portfolio, are visible to vehicle passengers and can enhance the vehicle s aesthetic appeal, in
addition to creating a barrier to wind, precipitation, dust, and noise. Our noise, vibration and harshness control products (NVH), which are also
part of our body & chassis products, are a fundamental part of the driving experience and can be important to the vehicle quality and can
significantly improve ride and handling. Our fluid handling modules and sub-systems are designed to increase functionality and decrease cost to
the OEM, which can be the deciding factor in winning new business.
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To remain a leader in new product innovation, we will continue to invest in research and development and to focus on new technologies,
materials, and designs. We believe that extensive use of Design for Six Sigma and other development strategies and techniques has led to some
of our most successful recent product innovations, including our ESP Thermoplastic Glassruns (Body & Chassis), a proprietary
plastics-to-aluminum overmolding process (Fluid Handling), and our hydromounts (Body & Chassis). Examples of successful modular
innovations include engine cooling systems, fuel and brake systems, and exhaust gas recirculation modules in our fluid handling product
category, and Daylight Opening Modules in our body & chassis category.

Selectively pursuing complementary acquisitions and alliances

We intend to continue to selectively pursue acquisitions and joint ventures to enhance our customer base, geographic penetration, market

diversity, scale, and technology. Consolidation is an industry trend and is encouraged by OEMs desire for fewer supplier relationships. We

believe joint ventures allow us to penetrate new markets with less relative risk and capital investment. We believe we have a strong platform for

growth through acquisitions based on our past integration successes, experienced management team, global presence, and operational

excellence. We also operate through several successful joint ventures, including those with Nishikawa Rubber Company, Zhejiang Saiyang Seal
Products Co., Ltd. ( Saiyang Sealing ), Guyoung Technology Co. Ltd. ( Guyoung ), Hubei Jingda Precision Steel Tube Industry Co., Ltd. ( Jingda ),
Shanghai Automotive Industry Corporation ( SAIC ) and Toyoda Gosei Co., Ltd. ( Toyoda Gosei ).

Expanding our footprint in Asia

While we have, through new facilities, acquisitions, and joint ventures, significantly expanded our presence in Asia, particularly China and
India, we believe that significant opportunities for growth exist in this fast-growing market. We will continue to evaluate opportunities that
enable us to establish or expand our design, technology and commercial support operations in that region and enhance our ability to serve
current and future customers.

Focusing on operational excellence and cost structure

We will continue to intensely focus on the efficiency of our manufacturing operations and on opportunities to reduce our cost structure.
Although the automotive supply sector is highly competitive, we believe that we have been able to maintain strong operating margins due in part
to our ability to constantly improve our manufacturing processes and to selectively relocate or close facilities. Our primary areas of focus are:

Identifying and implementing I.ean initiatives throughout the Company. Our Lean initiatives are focused on optimizing
manufacturing by eliminating waste, controlling cost, and enhancing productivity. Lean initiatives have been implemented at each of

our manufacturing and design facilities and continue to be an important element in our disciplined approach to operational
excellence.

Evaluating opportunities to relocate operations to lower-cost countries. We are supplementing our Western European operation s
higher labor content to more closely match our customers footprints for more efficient transport of parts. In addition, some

components have been moved to China and India while also expanding in Mexico.

Consolidating facilities to reduce our cost structure. Our restructuring efforts were primarily undertaken to streamline our global
operations. We will continue to take a disciplined approach to evaluating opportunities that would improve our efficiency,
profitability, and cost structure.

Maintaining flexibility in all areas of our operations. Our operational capital needs are generally lower compared to many in the
automotive industry. Our manufacturing machinery is re-programmable and many times movable from job-to-job providing us
flexibility in adapting to market changes and serving customers.
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Developing business in non-automotive markets

While the automotive industry will continue to be our core business, we supply other industries with products using our expertise and material
compounding capabilities. As a result of the MAPS acquisition, we acquired the technical rubber business which develops and produces rubber
products for a variety of industry applications ranging from aircraft flooring, commercial flooring, insulating sheets for power stations, non-slip
step coverings, rubber for appliances and construction applications. The technical rubber business has several thousand elastomer compounds to
draw from and can custom fit almost any application.

Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. is an Ohio corporation. Our principal executive offices are located at 39550 Orchard Hill Place Drive, Novi,
Michigan 48375. Our telephone number is (248) 596-5900. We also maintain a website at www.cooperstandard.com, which is not a part of this
prospectus.

The Notes

The summary below describes the principal terms of the notes. Certain of the terms and conditions described below are subject to important
limitations and exceptions. The Description of the Notes section of this prospectus contains a more detailed description of the terms and
conditions of the notes.

Issuer Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc.
Securities Offered $200,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 7% Senior Notes due
2012.

$350,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 8 /8% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2014.

Maturity The Senior Notes will mature on December 15, 2012.

The Senior Subordinated Notes will mature on December 15, 2014.

Interest Rate The Senior Notes bear interest at a rate of 7% per annum (calculated
using a 360-day year).

The Senior Subordinated Notes bear interest at a rate of 8 3/8% per
annum (calculated using a 360-day year).

Interest Payment Dates We pay interest on the notes on June 15 and December 15 each year
through maturity.

Ranking The Senior Notes are our general unsecured obligations and:

rank equally in right of payment to all of our existing and future
senior unsecured indebtedness and other obligations that are not, by
their terms, expressly subordinated in right of payment to the Senior
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rank senior in right of payment to any of our existing and future
indebtedness and other obligations that are, by their terms, expressly
subordinated in right of payment to the Senior Notes, including the
Senior Subordinated Notes; and

are effectively subordinated to all of our existing and future
secured indebtedness and other secured obligations, including the
senior credit facilities, to the extent of the value of the assets securing
such indebtedness and other obligations, and are structurally
subordinated to all obligations of any subsidiary if that subsidiary is
not also a guarantor of the Senior Notes.
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Similarly, the Senior Note guarantees are senior unsecured
obligations of the guarantors and:

rank equally in right of payment to all of the applicable
guarantor s existing and future senior unsecured indebtedness and
other obligations that are not, by their terms, expressly subordinated
in right of payment to the Senior Notes;

rank senior in right of payment to all of the applicable guarantor s
existing and future indebtedness and other obligations that are, by
their terms, expressly subordinated in right of payment to the Senior
Notes, including the applicable guarantor s guarantee of the Senior
Subordinated Notes; and

are effectively subordinated in right of payment to all of the
applicable guarantor s existing and future secured indebtedness,
including the applicable guarantor s guarantee under the senior credit
facilities, to the extent of the value of the assets securing such
indebtedness, and are structurally subordinated to all obligations of
any subsidiary of a guarantor if that subsidiary is not also a guarantor
of the Senior Notes.

The Senior Subordinated Notes are our unsecured senior
subordinated obligations and:

rank equally in right of payment to all of our existing and future
unsecured senior subordinated indebtedness and other obligations;

rank senior in right of payment to any of our existing and future
indebtedness and other obligations that are, by their terms, expressly
subordinated in right of payment to the Senior Subordinated Notes;
and

are subordinated in right of payment to all of our existing and
future senior indebtedness and other senior obligations, including the
senior credit facilities and the Senior Notes, are effectively
subordinated to all of our existing and future secured indebtedness
and other secured obligations, including the senior credit facilities, to
the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness and
other obligations, and are structurally subordinated to all obligations
of any subsidiary if that subsidiary is not a guarantor of the Senior
Subordinated Notes.

Similarly, the Senior Subordinated Note guarantees are senior
subordinated unsecured obligations of the guarantors and:
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rank equally in right of payment to all of the applicable
guarantor s existing and future unsecured senior subordinated
indebtedness and other obligations;

rank senior in right of payment to any of the applicable
guarantor s existing and future indebtedness and other obligations that
are, by their terms, expressly subordinated in right of payment to the
Senior Subordinated Notes; and

Table of Contents 12



Edgar Filing: Cooper-Standard Automotive FHS Inc. - Form 424B3

Table of Conten

Guarantees

Optional Redemption

Table of Contents

are subordinated in right of payment to all of the applicable
guarantor s existing and future senior indebtedness and other senior
obligations, including the applicable guarantor s guarantee under the
senior credit facilities and the Senior Notes, are effectively
subordinated to all of the applicable guarantor s existing and future
secured indebtedness, including the applicable guarantor s guarantee
under the senior credit facilities, to the extent of the value of the
assets securing such indebtedness, and are structurally subordinated
to all obligations of any subsidiary of a guarantor if that subsidiary is
not a guarantor of the Senior Subordinated Notes.

As of December 31, 2008, (i) the Senior Notes and related guarantees
ranked effectively junior to approximately $621 million of senior
secured indebtedness, (ii) the Senior Notes and related guarantees
ranked senior to approximately $323.4 million of subordinated
indebtedness, (iii) the Senior Subordinated Notes and related
guarantees ranked junior to approximately $821 million of senior
indebtedness, (iv) we had an additional $30.1 million of unutilized
capacity under our senior credit facilities and (v) our non-guarantor
subsidiaries had approximately $52 million of indebtedness
(excluding indebtedness of the Company s Canadian subsidiary
included in the senior secured indebtedness), excluding intercompany
obligations, plus other liabilities, including trade payables, that
would have been structurally senior to the notes.

Our parent, Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc., and each of our domestic
subsidiaries that guarantees our senior credit facilities
unconditionally guarantee the Senior Notes on a senior unsecured
basis and the Senior Subordinated Notes on a senior subordinated
basis.

Our non-guarantor subsidiaries accounted for $1,734.0 million, or
66.8%, of our net sales (excluding non-guarantor subsidiaries
intercompany sales of $25.1 million) for the year ended

December 31, 2008, and $1,159.1 million, or 63.7%, of our assets
and $496.7 million, or 27.5%, of our liabilities as of

December 31, 2008, excluding all intercompany assets and liabilities.

Prior to December 15, 2008, we could have redeemed some or all of
the Senior Notes for cash at a redemption price equal to 100% of

their principal amount plus an applicable make-whole premium (as
described in  Description of the Notes Optional Redemption ) plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. No such
redemption occurred on or prior to such date. Beginning on

December 15, 2008 we may redeem some or all of the Senior Notes

at the redemption prices listed under Description of the

Notes Optional Redemption plus accrued interest on the Senior Notes
to the date of redemption.
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Prior to December 15, 2009, we may redeem some or all of the
Senior Subordinated Notes for cash at a redemption price equal to
100% of their principal amount plus an applicable make-whole
premium (as described in Description of the Notes Optional
Redemption ) plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.
Beginning on December 15, 2009 we may redeem some or all of the
Senior Subordinated Notes at the redemption prices listed under
Description of the Notes Optional Redemption plus accrued interest
on the Senior Subordinated Notes to the date of redemption.

In addition on or before December 15, 2007, we could have at our
option, used the net proceeds from one or more equity offerings to
redeem up to 35% of the Senior Notes and up to 35% of the Senior
Subordinated Notes, in each case, at the redemption price listed
under Description of the Notes Optional Redemption. No such
redemption occurred on or prior to such date.

If we experience a change of control, as described under Description
of the Notes Change of Control, we must, subject to the terms of the
senior credit facilities, offer to repurchase all of the Senior Notes and
the Senior Subordinated Notes (unless otherwise redeemed) at a price
equal to 101% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid
interest to the repurchase date.

The indentures governing the notes contain covenants limiting our
(and most or all of our subsidiaries ) ability to:

incur additional debt;

pay dividends or distributions on our capital stock or repurchase
our capital stock;

issue stock of subsidiaries;
make certain investments;

create liens on our assets to secure debt (which, in the case of the
Senior Subordinated Notes, will be limited in applicability to liens
securing pari passu or subordinated indebtedness);

enter into transactions with affiliates;
merge or consolidate; and

transfer and sell assets.

These covenants are subject to a number of important limitations and
exceptions. For more details see Description of the Notes Certain
Covenants.

The notes are freely transferable but there is no established market
for the notes. Accordingly, we cannot assure you whether a market
for the notes will develop or as to the liquidity of any market. No one
is obligated, to make a market in the notes, and any such
market-making may be discontinued at any time without notice.
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SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data referred to as the Successor data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and as of
December 31, 2004 and for the period from December 24, 2004 to December 31, 2004, have been derived from the consolidated audited
financial statements of Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. and its subsidiaries which have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent
registered public accountants.

The selected financial data referred to as the Predecessor financial data as of the period from January 1, 2004 to December 23, 2004 have been
derived from the combined audited financial statements of the automotive segment of Cooper Tire, which have been audited by Ernst & Young
LLP, independent registered public accountants. The information reflects our business as it historically operated within Cooper Tire, and
includes certain assets and liabilities that we did not acquire or assume as part of the 2004 Acquisition. Also, on December 23, 2004,
Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc., which prior to the 2004 Acquisition never had any independent operations, purchased the automotive business
represented in the historical Predecessor financial statements. As a result of applying the required purchase accounting rules to the 2004
Acquisition and accounting for the assets and liabilities that were not assumed in the 2004 Acquisition, our financial statements for the period
following the acquisition were significantly affected. The application of purchase accounting rules required us to revalue our assets and
liabilities, which resulted in different accounting bases being applied in different periods. As a result, historical combined financial data included
in this prospectus in Predecessor statements may not reflect what our actual financial position, results of operations, and cash flows would have
been had we operated as a separate, stand-alone company as of and for those periods presented.

10
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You should read the following data in conjunction with Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

and the consolidated financial statements of Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc. included elsewhere in this prospectus (Information presented in

millions).

Statement of operations
Net sales
Cost of products sold

Gross profit

Selling, administration, & engineering
expenses

Amortization of intangibles
Impairment charges

Restructuring

Operating profit

Interest expense, net of interest income
Equity earnings

Other income (expense)

Income (loss) before income taxes
Provision for income taxes (benefit)

Net income (loss)

Statement of cash flows data
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities
Investment activities
Financing activities

Other financial data
Capital expenditures

Balance sheet data

Cash and cash equivalents
Net working capital (1)
Total assets

Total non-current liabilities
Total debt (2)

Net parent investment / Stockholders equity

Predecessor

January 1, 2004
to December 23,
2004

$ 1,858.9
1,539.1

319.8

177.5
0.7

21.2

120.4
(1.8)

1.0
2.1)

117.5
342

$ 83.3

$ 132.2
(53.5)
(109.6)

$ 62.7

December 24, 2004

to

December

$

$

$

31,
2004

4.7
4.7

52

(5.2)
(5.7)

4.6

6.3)
(1.8)

4.5)

29.3
(1,132.9)
1,189.3

0.3

83.7
123.1
1,812.3
1,165.0
912.7
318.2

Year Ended
December 31,
2005

$ 18274
1,550.2

277.2

169.7
28.2

3.0

76.3
(66.6)

2.8
(1.3)

11.2
24

$ 8.8

$  113.0
(133.0)
(7.2)

$ 54.5

$ 62.2
162.9
1,734.2
1,117.9
902.5
312.2

Successor

Year Ended
December 31,

$

$

2006

2,164.3
1,832.1

332.2

199.8
31.0
13.2
239

64.3
(87.2)

0.2

7.0

(15.7)
(7.3)

8.4)

135.9
(281.8)
147.6

82.9

56.3
212.1
19114
1,259.4
1,055.5
320.7

Year Ended
December 31,
2007

$ 25112
2,114.1

397.1

222.1
31.9
146.4
26.4

(29.7)

(89.5)
22

(1.1)

(118.1)
329

$ (151.0)

$ 185.4
(260.0)
55.0

$ 107.3

$ 40.9
249.8
2,162.3
1,359.8
1,140.2
268.6

Year Ended
December 31,
2008

$ 2,594.6
2,260.1

3345

231.7
31.0
334
383

0.1
(92.9)

0.9
(0.3)

92.2)
29.3

$ (121.5)

$ 136.5
(73.9)
14.1

$ 92.1

$ 111.5
154.5
1,818.3
1,351.4
1,144.1
15.2

(1) Net working capital is defined as current assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents) less current liabilities (excluding debt payable within

one year).

(2) Includes term loans, bonds, $1.5 million in capital leases, $60.9 million of revolving credit, and $28.4 million of other third-party debt at

December 31, 2008.

Table of Contents

18



Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: Cooper-Standard Automotive FHS Inc. - Form 424B3

11

19



Edgar Filing: Cooper-Standard Automotive FHS Inc. - Form 424B3

Table of Conten
RISK FACTORS
Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risk factors and all other information contained in this prospectus. The risks and uncertainties
described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties that we are unaware of, or that we currently deem immaterial,
also may become important factors that affect us. Any of these risks could cause our actual results to vary materially from recent or anticipated
results and could materially and adversely affect our business and financial condition.

Risks Relating to Our Business and Leverage

We are highly dependent on the automotive industry, and a prolonged contraction in automotive sales and production volumes could have a
material adverse affect on our results of operations and liquidity.

The great majority of our customers are OEMs and their suppliers. Automotive sales and production declined substantially in the second half of
2008 and are not expected to recover significantly in the near future. This will have a continuing negative impact on our sales, liquidity and
results of operations, as the demand for our products decreases as the volume of automotive production decreases.

The negative impact on our financial condition and results of operations could have negative effects on us under our credit facilities by affecting
our ability to comply with the financial ratio covenants contained in our credit facilities. An inability to comply would require us to seek waivers
or amendments of such covenants. There is no guarantee that such waivers or amendments would be obtained and, even if they were obtained,
we would likely incur additional costs. An inability to obtain any such waiver or amendment could result in a breach and a possible event of
default under our credit facilities, which could allow the lenders to discontinue lending, terminate any commitments they have to provide us with
additional funds and/or declare amounts outstanding to be due and payable. There is no assurance that we would have sufficient funds to repay
such obligations or that we could obtain alternative funding on terms acceptable to us.

Our liquidity could also be adversely impacted if our suppliers reduced their normal trade credit terms as the result of any decline in our
financial condition or if our customers extended their normal payment terms. If either of these situations occurred, we would need to rely on
other sources of funding to cover the additional gap between the time we pay our suppliers and the time we receive corresponding payments
from our customers.

The financial conditions of OEMs, particularly the Detroit 3, may adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

The deteriorating financial condition of the OEMs, particularly the Detroit 3, could have adverse impacts on our financial condition in addition
to those resulting directly from lower productions volumes (as described in the preceding risk factor). The Detroit 3 are undertaking, or may
undertake, various forms of restructuring initiatives which may ultimately include, in certain cases, reorganization under bankruptcy laws.
Chrysler and General Motors have sought funding and Ford has sought a line of credit from the U.S. government due to the significant financial
difficulties they face. There is no assurance that the Detroit 3 will be able to meet the conditions imposed on them in connection with any such
government assistance or that any such assistance will enable them to remain viable. The filing of bankruptcy proceedings by any of the Detroit
3, in addition to potentially impacting the ability of the filing company to continue to sell their products at sustainable levels and remain viable
customers, could impact the collectability of our accounts receivable owing from the filing company.

A prolonged contraction in automotive sales and production volumes and the financial conditions of OEMs could adversely affect the
viability of our supply base.

Our suppliers are subject to many of the same consequences that would impact us as a result of a prolonged contraction in automotive sales and
production volumes. In addition, many of our suppliers also directly supply the Detroit 3, and the financial condition of the Detroit 3,
particularly any bankruptcy filing, could impact the collectability of their accounts receivable. Depending on each supplier s financial condition
and access to capital, its viability could be threatened by such conditions or events which could impact its ability to meet its contractual
commitments to us and consequently impact our ability to meet our own commitments to our customers. There is no assurance that we would be
able to establish alternative sources of supply in time to meet such commitments and avoid potential penalties and damages that could result
from such failure.

12
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Disruptions in the financial markets are adversely impacting the availability and cost of credit which could continue to negatively affect our
business.

Disruptions in the financial markets, including the bankruptcy, insolvency or restructuring of certain financial institutions, have adversely
impacted the availability and cost of credit for many companies and consumers and had a negative impact on the global economy, consumer
confidence, and the demand for automotive products. There is no assurance that government efforts to respond to these disruptions, or other
circumstances, will restore consumer confidence, improve the liquidity of the financial markets or otherwise improve conditions in the
automotive industry.

Our substantial leverage could harm our business by limiting our available cash and our access to additional capital and, to the extent of our
variable rate indebtedness, exposes us to interest rate risk.

We are highly leveraged. As of December 31, 2008, our total consolidated indebtedness was $1,144.1 million. Our leverage increased upon the
closing of our acquisition of MAPS, because we financed part of the acquisition with an incremental term loan under the Second Amendment to
the Credit Agreement.

Our high degree of leverage could have important consequences, including:

It may limit our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, product development, debt service
requirements, acquisitions, and general corporate or other purposes on favorable terms or at all;

A substantial portion of our cash flows from operations must be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on our indebtedness
and thus will not be available for other purposes, including our operations, capital expenditures, and future business opportunities;

The debt service requirements of our other indebtedness could make it more difficult for us to make payments on the Senior Notes and
Senior Subordinated Notes issued by Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. in connection with the 2004 Acquisition (the Notes );

It may place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to those of our competitors that are less highly leveraged;

It may restrict our ability to make strategic acquisitions or cause us to make non-strategic divestitures; and

We may be more vulnerable than a less highly-leveraged company to a downturn in general economic conditions or in our business, or

we may be unable to carry out the desired amount of capital spending to support our growth.
Our cash paid for interest for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $95.4 million, which excludes the amortization of $5.0 million of debt
issuance costs. At December 31, 2008, we had $597.2 million of debt with floating interest rates, including $174.8 million managed by the use
of interest rate swap contracts to convert the variable rate characteristic to fixed rate. If interest rates increase, assuming no principal repayments
or use of financial derivatives, our debt service obligations on the variable rate indebtedness would increase even though the amount borrowed
remained the same, and our net income and cash available for servicing our indebtedness, including the Notes, would decrease. After
considering the effects of certain interest rate swap contracts we entered into during 2008, a 1% increase in the average interest rate of our
variable rate indebtedness would increase future interest expense by approximately $4.2 million per year.

Our debt agreements contain restrictions that limit our flexibility in operating our business.

The senior credit agreement and the indentures under which the Notes were issued contain a number of significant covenants that, among other
things, restrict our ability to:
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incur additional indebtedness or issue redeemable preferred stock;

pay dividends and repurchase our capital stock;

issue stock of subsidiaries;

make certain investments;

enter into agreements that restrict dividends from subsidiaries;

transfer or sell assets;

enter into transactions with our affiliates;

incur liens;
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engage in mergers, amalgamations, or consolidations; and

make capital expenditures.
In addition, under the senior credit agreement, we are required to satisfy specified financial ratios and tests. Our ability to comply with those
provisions may be affected by events beyond our control, and may limit our ability to comply with those required ratios and tests.

We may be unable to comply with the financial covenants in our senior credit agreement.

The financial covenants in our senior credit agreement require us to achieve certain financial ratios based on levels of earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation, amortization and certain adjustments (EBITDA), as defined in the senior credit agreement. A failure to comply with these or
other covenants in the senior credit facility could, if we were unable to obtain a waiver or another amendment of the covenant terms, cause an
event of default that could cause our loans under the senior credit facility to become immediately due and payable. In addition, additional
waivers or amendments could substantially increase the cost of borrowing.

Increasing costs for or reduced availability of manufactured components and raw materials may adversely affect our profitability.

The principal raw materials we purchase include fabricated metal-based components, synthetic rubber, carbon black, and natural rubber. Raw
materials comprise the largest component of our costs, representing approximately 47% of our total costs during the year ended December 31,
2008. A significant increase in the price of these items could materially increase our operating costs and materially and adversely affect our
profit margins because it is generally difficult to pass through these increased costs to our customers. For example, we have experienced
significant price increases in our raw steel and steel-related components purchases as a result of increased global demand. While these increases
fell off in the second half of 2008, continued volatility in the global market presents risk in forecasting cost.

Because we purchase various types of raw materials and manufactured components, we may be materially and adversely affected by the failure

of our suppliers of those materials to perform as expected. This non-performance may consist of delivery delays or failures caused by production
issues or delivery of non-conforming products. The risk of non-performance may also result from the insolvency or bankruptcy of one or more

of our suppliers. Our suppliers ability to supply products to us is also subject to a number of risks, including availability of raw materials, such as
steel and natural rubber, destruction of their facilities, or work stoppages. In addition, our failure to promptly pay, or order sufficient quantities

of inventory from our suppliers may increase the cost of products we purchase or may lead to suppliers refusing to sell products to us at all. Our
efforts to protect against and to minimize these risks may not always be effective.

We could be adversely affected if we are unable to continue to compete successfully in the highly competitive automotive parts industry.

The automotive parts industry is highly competitive. We face numerous competitors in each of the product lines we serve. In general, there are
three or more significant competitors for most of the products offered by our company and numerous smaller competitors. We also face
increased competition for certain of our products from suppliers producing in lower-cost countries such as Korea and China, especially for
certain lower-technology noise, vibration and harshness control products that have physical characteristics that make long-distance shipping
more feasible and economical. We may not be able to continue to compete favorably and increased competition in our markets may have a
material adverse effect on our business.

We are subject to other risks associated with our non-U.S. operations.

We have significant manufacturing operations outside the United States, including joint ventures and other alliances. Our operations are located
in 18 countries and we export to several other countries. In 2008, approximately 74% of our net sales originated outside the United States. Risks
are inherent in international operations, including:

exchange controls and currency restrictions;

currency fluctuations and devaluations;
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changes in laws and regulations, including the imposition of embargos;

exposure to possible expropriation or other government actions; and

unsettled political conditions and possible terrorist attacks against American interests.
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These and other factors may have a material adverse effect on our international operations or on our business, results of operations, and financial
condition. For example, we are faced with potential difficulties in staffing and managing local operations and we have to design local solutions
to manage credit risks of local customers and distributors. Also, the cost and complexity of streamlining operations in certain European countries
is greater than would be the case in the United States, due primarily to labor laws in those countries that can make reducing employment levels
more time-consuming and expensive than in the United States. Our flexibility in our foreign operations can also be somewhat limited by
agreements we have entered into with our foreign joint venture partners.

Our overall success as a global business depends, in part, upon our ability to succeed in differing economic, social, and political conditions. We
may not continue to succeed in developing and implementing policies and strategies that are effective in each location where we do business,
and failure to do so could harm our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Our sales outside the United States expose us to currency risks. During times of a strengthening U.S. dollar, at a constant level of business, our
reported international sales and earnings will be reduced because the local currency will translate into fewer U.S. dollars. In addition to currency
translation risks, we incur a currency transaction risk whenever one of our operating subsidiaries enters into either a purchase or a sales
transaction using a different currency from the currency in which it receives revenues. Given the volatility of exchange rates, we may not be able
to manage our currency transaction and/or translation risks effectively, or volatility in currency exchange rates may have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Our lean manufacturing and other cost savings plans may not be effective.

Our operations strategy includes cutting costs by reducing product errors, inventory levels, operator motion, overproduction, and waiting while
fostering the increased flow of material, information, and communication. The cost savings that we anticipate from these initiatives may not be
achieved on schedule or at the level anticipated by management. If we are unable to realize these anticipated savings, our operating results and
financial condition may be adversely affected. Moreover, the implementation of cost saving plans and facilities integration may disrupt our
operations and performance.

We may incur material losses and costs as a result of product liability and warranty and recall claims that may be brought against us.

We may be exposed to product liability and warranty claims in the event that our products actually or allegedly fail to perform as expected or the
use of our products results, or is alleged to result, in bodily injury and/or property damage. Accordingly, we could experience material warranty
or product liability losses in the future and incur significant costs to defend these claims.

In addition, if any of our products are, or are alleged to be, defective, we may be required to participate in a recall of that product if the defect or
the alleged defect relates to automotive safety. Our costs associated with providing product warranties could be material. Product liability,
warranty, and recall costs may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Work stoppages or similar difficulties could disrupt our operations.

As of December 31, 2008, approximately 46% of our employees were represented by unions, and approximately 10% of our employees were
union represented employees located in the United States. It is possible that our workforce will become more unionized in the future. A work
stoppage at one or more of our plants may have a material adverse effect on our business. Collective bargaining agreements at six of our North
American facilities are due to expire in 2009, and we will be engaged in negotiations with unions at these facilities with respect to new contracts.
Unionization activities could also increase our costs, which could have an adverse effect on our profitability. We may be subject to work
stoppages and may be, affected by other labor disputes. Additionally, a work stoppage at one or more of our customers or our customers
suppliers could adversely affect our operations if an alternative source of supply were not readily available. Stoppages by employees of our
customers also could result in reduced demand for our products and have material adverse effect on our business.

Our success depends in part on our development of improved products, and our efforts may fail to meet the needs of customers on a timely or
cost-effective basis.

Our continued success depends on our ability to maintain advanced technological capabilities, machinery, and knowledge necessary to adapt to
changing market demands as well as to develop and commercialize innovative products. We may not be able to develop new products as
successfully as in the past or be able to keep pace with technological developments by our competitors and the industry generally. In addition,
we may develop specific technologies and capabilities in anticipation of customers demands for new innovations and technologies. If such
demand does not materialize, we may be unable to recover the costs incurred in such programs. If we are unable to recover these costs or if any
such programs do not progress as expected, our business, financial condition, or results of operations could be materially adversely affected.
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Our ability to operate our company effectively could be impaired if we fail to attract and retain key personnel.

Our ability to operate our business and implement our strategies depends, in part, on the efforts of our key employees. The severe down turn in
the auto industry may add additional pressure to our ability to retain key employees. In addition, our future success will depend on, among other
factors, our ability to attract and retain other qualified personnel. The loss of the services of any of our key employees or the failure to attract or
retain other qualified personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business or business prospects.

Our Sponsors may have conflicts of interest with us in the future.

Our Sponsors beneficially own approximately 98.6% of the outstanding shares of our common stock. Additionally, we have entered into a
stockholders agreement with the Sponsors that grants them certain preemptive rights to purchase additional equity and rights to designate
members of our Board of Directors. As a result, our Sponsors have control over our decisions to enter into any corporate transaction and have
the ability to prevent any transaction that requires the approval of stockholders regardless of whether or not other stockholders or noteholders
believe that any such transactions are in their own best interests.

Additionally, our Sponsors are in the business of making investments in companies and may from time to time acquire and hold interests in
businesses that compete directly or indirectly with us. Our Sponsors may also pursue acquisition opportunities that may be complementary to
our business, and as a result, those acquisition opportunities may not be available to us. So long as our Sponsors continue to own a significant
amount of the outstanding shares of our common stock, even if such amount is less than 50%, they will continue to be able to strongly influence
or effectively control our decisions.

Our intellectual property portfolio is subject to legal challenges.

We have developed and actively pursue developing proprietary technology in the automotive industry and rely on intellectual property laws and
a number of patents in many jurisdictions to protect such technology. However, we may be unable to prevent third parties from using our
intellectual property without authorization. If we had to litigate to protect these rights, any proceedings could be costly, and we may not prevail.
We also face increasing exposure to the claims of others for infringement of intellectual property rights. We may have material intellectual
property claims asserted against us in the future and could incur significant costs or losses related to such claims.

Our pension plans are currently underfunded and we may have to make cash payments to the plans, reducing the cash available for our
business.

We sponsor various pension plans worldwide that are underfunded and will require cash payments. Additionally, if the performance of the assets
in our pension plans does not meet our expectations, or if other actuarial assumptions are modified, our required contributions may be higher
than we expect. If our cash flow from operations is insufficient to fund our worldwide pension liability, we may be forced to reduce or delay
capital expenditures, seek additional capital, or seek to restructure or refinance our indebtedness.

As of December 31, 2008, our $251.8 million projected benefit obligation ( PBO ) for U.S. pension benefit obligations exceeded the fair value of
the relevant plans assets, which totaled $162.6 million, by $89.2 million. Additionally, the international employees plans PBO exceeded plan
assets by approximately $72.4 million at December 31, 2008. The PBO for other postretirement benefits ( OPEB ) was $68.5 million at
December 31, 2008. Our estimated funding requirement for pensions and OPEB during 2009 is approximately $19.4 million. Net periodic

pension costs for U.S. and international plans, including pension benefits and OPEB, were $19.1 million and $18.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively. See Notes 9 and 10 to our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this
prospectus.
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We are subject to a broad range of environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations, which could adversely affect our business and
results of operations.

We are subject to a broad range of federal, state, and local environmental and occupational safety and health laws and regulations in the United
States and other countries, including those governing emissions to air, discharges to water, noise and odor emissions; the generation, handling,
storage, transportation, treatment, and disposal of waste materials; the cleanup of contaminated properties; and human health and safety. We
may incur substantial costs associated with hazardous substance contamination or exposure, including cleanup costs, fines, and civil or criminal
sanctions, third party property or natural resource damage, or personal injury claims, or costs to upgrade or replace existing equipment, as a
result of violations of or liabilities under environmental laws or non-compliance with environmental permits required at our locations. In
addition, many of our current and former facilities are located on properties with long histories of industrial or commercial operations and some
of these properties have been subject to certain environmental investigations and remediation activities. Because some environmental laws (such
as the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act) can impose liability for the entire cost of cleanup upon any of
the current or former owners or operators, retroactively and regardless of fault, we could become liable for investigating or remediating
contamination at these or other properties (including offsite locations). We may not always be in complete compliance with all applicable
requirements of environmental law or regulation, and we may incur material costs or liabilities in connection with such requirements. In
addition, new environmental requirements or changes to existing requirements, or in their enforcement, could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations, and financial condition. We have made and will continue to make expenditures to comply with environmental
requirements. While our costs to defend and settle claims arising under environmental laws in the past have not been material, such costs may be
material in the future. For more information about our environmental compliance and potential environmental liabilities, see Business
Environmental.

If our acquisition strategy is not successful, we may not achieve our growth and profit objectives.

We may selectively pursue complementary acquisitions in the future as part of our growth strategy. While we will evaluate business
opportunities on a regular basis, we may not be successful in identifying any attractive acquisitions. We may not have, or be able to raise on
acceptable terms, sufficient financial resources to make acquisitions. In addition, any acquisitions we make will be subject to all of the risks
inherent in an acquisition strategy, including integrating financial and operational reporting systems; establishing satisfactory budgetary and
other financial controls; funding increased capital needs and overhead expenses; obtaining management personnel required for expanded
operations; and funding cash flow shortages that may occur if anticipated sales and revenues are not realized or are delayed, whether by general
economic or market conditions or unforeseen internal difficulties.

Our amount of leverage creates significant risk.

Our ability to make scheduled payments or to refinance our debt obligations depends on our financial and operating performance, which is
subject to prevailing economic and competitive conditions and to certain financial, business, and other factors beyond our control. We may not
be able to maintain a level of cash flows from operating activities sufficient to permit us to pay the principal, premium, if any, and interest on
our indebtedness. See Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital
Resources.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital
expenditures, seek additional capital, or seek to restructure or refinance our indebtedness. These alternative measures may not be successful and
may not permit us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations. In the absence of such operating results and resources, we could face
substantial liquidity problems and might be required to sell material assets or operations to attempt to meet our debt service and other
obligations. The Senior Credit Facilities and the indentures under which the Senior Notes and the Senior Subordinated Notes were issued restrict
our ability to use the proceeds from asset sales. We may not be able to consummate those asset sales to raise capital or sell assets at prices that
we believe are fair and proceeds that we do receive may not be adequate to meet any debt service obligations then due.

Despite our current leverage, we may still be able to incur substantially more debt, which could further exacerbate the risks that we and our
subsidiaries face.

We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. Our revolving credit facilities provide
commitments of up to $115.0 million, of which $30.1 million was available for future borrowings as of December 31, 2008. During the first
quarter of 2009, we have drawn substantially all of the revolving credit facilities balance that was available as of December 31, 2008.
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Risks Relating to the Notes
Your right to receive payments on each series of notes is effectively junior to those lenders who have a security interest in our assets.

Our obligations under the notes and our guarantors obligations under their guarantees of the notes are unsecured, but our obligations under our
senior credit facilities and each guarantor s obligations under their respective guarantees of the senior credit facilities are secured by a security
interest in substantially all of our domestic tangible and intangible assets and a portion of the stock of certain of our non-U.S. subsidiaries. In
addition, obligations of our Canadian subsidiary borrower under the senior credit facilities are guaranteed by our wholly-owned Canadian
subsidiaries and secured by substantially all of those Canadian subsidiaries tangible and intangible assets. If we are declared bankrupt or
insolvent, or if we default under our senior credit facilities, the lenders could declare all of the funds borrowed thereunder, together with accrued
interest, immediately due and payable. If we were unable to repay such indebtedness, the lenders could foreclose on the pledged assets to the
exclusion of holders of the exchange notes, even if an event of default exists under the indentures under which the notes will be issued.
Furthermore, if the lenders foreclose and sell the pledged equity interests in any subsidiary guarantor under the notes, then that guarantor will be
released from its guarantee of the exchange notes automatically and immediately upon such sale. In any such event, because the notes will not be
secured by any of our assets or the equity interests in subsidiary guarantors, it is possible that there would be no assets remaining from which
your claims could be satisfied or, if any assets remained, they might be insufficient to satisfy your claims fully. See Description of Other
Indebtedness.

As of December 31, 2008, we had $620.7 million of senior secured indebtedness. Additionally, all borrowings under our $125 million revolving
credit facilities will be senior secured indebtedness. The indentures permit the incurrence of substantial additional indebtedness by us and our
restricted subsidiaries in the future, including secured indebtedness.

Claims of noteholders are structurally subordinate to claims of creditors of all of our non-U.S. subsidiaries because they do not guarantee
the notes.

The notes are not guaranteed by any of our non-U.S. subsidiaries or our U.S. subsidiaries that are not wholly-owned. Accordingly, claims of
holders of the notes are structurally subordinate to the claims of creditors of these non-guarantor subsidiaries, including trade creditors. All
obligations of our non-guarantor subsidiaries will have to be satisfied before any of the assets of such subsidiaries would be available for
distribution, upon a liquidation or otherwise, to us or a guarantor of the notes.

As of December 31, 2008, our non-guarantor subsidiaries had total indebtedness of approximately $51.7 million (excluding non-guarantor
subsidiaries intercompany liabilities, our non-U.S. indebtedness under our senior credit facilities and guarantees of our non-U.S. indebtedness
under our senior credit facilities).

Based on our historical records, our non-guarantor subsidiaries accounted for $1,734.0 million, or 66.8%, of our net sales (excluding
non-guarantor subsidiaries intercompany sales to Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. and the guarantors of $25.1 million) for the year ended
December 31, 2008, and $1,159.1 million, or 63.7%, of our assets and $496.7 million, or 27.5%, of our liabilities as of December 31, 2008,
excluding all intercompany assets and liabilities.

We also have joint ventures and subsidiaries in which we own less than 100% of the equity so that, in addition to the structurally senior claims
of creditors of those entities, the equity interests of our joint venture partners or other shareholders in any dividend or other distribution made by
these entities would need to be satisfied on a proportionate basis with us. These joint ventures and less than wholly-owned subsidiaries may also
be subject to restrictions on their ability to distribute cash to us in their financing or other agreements and, as a result, we may not be able to
access their cash flow to service our debt obligations, including in respect of the notes.

Your right to receive payments on the senior subordinated notes will be junior to all of Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. s and the
guarantors senior indebtedness, including Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. s and the guarantors obligations under the senior credit
Jactilities, the senior notes and other existing and future senior debt.

The senior subordinated notes are general unsecured obligations that are junior in right of payment to all our existing and future senior
indebtedness, including the senior credit facilities. The senior subordinated guarantees are general unsecured obligations of the guarantors that
are junior in right of payment to all of the applicable guarantor s existing and future senior indebtedness, including the applicable guarantor s
guarantee of the senior credit facilities and the senior notes.
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Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. and the guarantors may not pay principal, premium, if any, interest or other amounts on account of the senior
subordinated notes or the senior subordinated guarantees in the event of a payment default or certain other defaults in respect of certain of our
senior indebtedness, including debt under the senior credit facilities and the senior notes, unless the senior indebtedness has been paid in full in
cash or cash equivalents or the default has been cured or waived. In addition, in the event of certain other defaults with respect to the senior
indebtedness, Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. or the guarantors may not be permitted to pay any amount on account of the senior subordinated
notes or the applicable senior subordinated guarantees for a designated period of time.

Because of the subordination provisions in the senior subordinated notes and the senior subordinated guarantees, in the event of a bankruptcy,
liquidation or dissolution of Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. or any guarantor, Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. s or the guarantor s assets will
not be available to pay obligations under the senior subordinated notes or the applicable senior subordinated guarantee until Cooper-Standard
Automotive Inc. or the guarantor has made all payments on its respective senior indebtedness. Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. and the
guarantors may not have sufficient assets after all these payments have been made to make any payments on the senior subordinated notes or the
applicable senior subordinated guarantee, including payments of principal or interest when due.

If we default on our obligations to pay our other indebtedness, we may not be able to make payments on the notes.

Any default under the agreements governing our indebtedness, including a default under our senior credit facilities that is not waived by the
required lenders, and the remedies sought by the holders of such indebtedness could make us unable to pay principal, premium, if any, and
interest on the notes and substantially decrease the market value of the notes. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow and are otherwise
unable to obtain funds necessary to meet required payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on our indebtedness, or if we otherwise
fail to comply with the various covenants, including financial and operating covenants, in the instruments governing our indebtedness (including
our senior credit facilities), we could be in default under the terms of the agreements governing such indebtedness. In the event of such default,
the holders of such indebtedness could elect to declare all the funds borrowed thereunder to be due and payable, together with accrued and
unpaid interest, the lenders under our revolving credit facilities could elect to terminate their commitments, cease making further loans and
institute foreclosure proceedings against our assets, and we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation. If our operating performance
declines, we may in the future need to seek to obtain waivers from the required lenders under our senior credit facilities to avoid being in default.
If we breach our covenants under our senior credit facilities and seek a waiver, we may not be able to obtain a waiver from the required lenders.
If this occurs, we would be in default under our senior credit facilities, the lenders could exercise their rights as described above, and we could
be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation. See Description of Other Indebtedness Senior Credit Facilities and Description of the Notes.

Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. may not be able to repurchase the notes upon a change of control.

Upon the occurrence of specific kinds of change of control events, Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. will be required to offer to repurchase all
outstanding notes at 101% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, unless such notes have been previously called for
redemption. We may not have sufficient financial resources to purchase all of the notes that are tendered upon a change of control offer. The
occurrence of a change of control could also constitute an event of default under our senior credit facilities. Our bank lenders may have the right
to prohibit any such purchase or redemption, in which event we will seek to obtain waivers from the required lenders under the senior credit
facilities, but may not be able to do so. See Description of the Notes Change of Control.

Your ability to transfer the notes may be limited by the absence of an active trading market, and there is no assurance that any active trading
market will develop for the notes.

We have not and do not intend to apply for a listing of the notes on a securities exchange or on any automated dealer quotation system. There is
currently no established market for the notes and we cannot assure you as to the liquidity of markets that may develop for the notes, your ability
to sell the notes or the price at which you would be able to sell the notes. If such markets were to exist, the notes could trade at prices that may
be lower than their principal amount or purchase price depending on many factors, including prevailing interest rates, the market for similar
notes, our financial and operating performance and other factors. No one is obligated to make a market with respect to the notes and any market
making with respect to the notes may be discontinued at any time without notice. In addition, such market making activity may be limited during
the pendency of the exchange offer or the effectiveness of a shelf registration statement in lieu thereof. Therefore, we cannot assure you that an
active market for the notes will develop or, if developed, that it will continue. Historically, the market for non-investment grade debt has been
subject to disruptions that have caused substantial volatility in the prices of securities similar to the notes. The market, if any, for the notes may
experience similar disruptions and any such disruptions may adversely affect the prices at which you may sell your notes.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange

Act. These forward-looking statements include statements concerning our plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events, future revenue or

performance, capital expenditures, financing needs, plans or intentions relating to acquisitions, business trends and other information that is not

historical information and, in particular, appear under Summary, = Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations and Our Business. When used in this prospectus, the words estimates, expects, anticipates, projects, plans, intends, belic
forecasts, or future or conditional verbs, such as will, should, could or may, and variations of such words or similar expressions are intended

identify forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, management s examination of historical

operating trends and data are based upon our current expectations and various assumptions. Our expectations, beliefs and projections are

expressed in good faith and we believe there is a reasonable basis for them. However, we cannot assure you that these expectations, beliefs and

projections will be achieved.

There are a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements
contained in this prospectus or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. Important factors that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from the forward-looking statements we make in this prospectus are set forth in this prospectus or incorporated by reference in this
prospectus, including under Risk Factors.

As stated elsewhere in this prospectus, such risks, uncertainties and other important factors include, among others: our substantial leverage;
limitations on flexibility in operating our business contained in our debt agreements; our dependence on the automotive industry; availability and
cost of raw materials; our dependence on certain major customers; competition in our industry; our conducting operations outside the

United States; the uncertainty of our ability to achieve expected Lean savings; our exposure to product liability and warranty claims; labor
conditions; our vulnerability to rising interest rates; our ability to meet our customers needs for new and improved products in a timely manner;
our ability to attract and retain key personnel; the possibility that our owners interests will conflict with our other investors interests; our status
as a stand-alone company; our legal rights to our intellectual property portfolio; our underfunded pension plans; environmental and other
regulation; and the possibility that our acquisition strategy will not be successful. There may be other factors that may cause our actual results to
differ materially from the forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf apply only as of the date of this prospectus and are expressly
qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements included in this prospectus. We undertake no obligation to update or revise
forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Predecessor Successor
December 24
Combined
January 1 to fo Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 23, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2004 2004 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Ratio of Earnings to

Fixed Charges 13.9x 8.4x 1.1x

For purposes of calculating the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, earnings represents earnings from continuing operations before income taxes,
less income from equity method investments, plus minority interest expense and fixed charges. Fixed charges include interest expense and the
portion of operating rental expense which management believes is representative of the interest component of rent expense (assumed to be 33%).
Our fixed charges exceeded our earnings by $94.2 million during the period ended December 31, 2008. Our fixed charges exceeded our earnings
by $119.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2007. Our fixed charges exceeded our earnings by $15.0 million during the year ended
December 31, 2006. Our fixed charges exceeded our earnings by $6.3 million during the period December 24, 2004 to December 31, 2004.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The prospectus is delivered in connection with the sale of notes by Goldman, Sachs & Co. in market-making transactions. We will not receive
any of the proceeds from such transactions.
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included
elsewhere in this prospectus. The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations contains certain forward-looking
statements relating to our anticipated future financial condition and operating results and our current business plans. In the future, our financial
condition and operating results could differ materially from those discussed herein and our current business plans could be altered in response to
market conditions and other factors beyond our control. Important factors that could cause or contribute to such differences or changes include
those discussed elsewhere in this prospectus. See Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors.

Basis of Presentation

Prior to the 2004 Acquisition, the automotive segment of Cooper Tire & Rubber Company (referred to as the Predecessor ) did not operate as a
stand-alone business, but as a reportable business segment of Cooper Tire & Rubber Company ( Cooper Tire ). The financial information of the
Predecessor represents the combined results of operations and cash flows of the automotive business segment of Cooper Tire and reflects the
historical basis of accounting without any application of purchase accounting for the 2004 Acquisition. The financial information of the

Company following the 2004 Acquisition (referred to as the Successor ) included in this prospectus represents our consolidated financial position
as of December 31, 2007 and 2008 and our consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2007 and
2008 and reflects the application of purchase accounting.

Company Overview

We design, manufacture, and sell body sealing, NVH control and fluid handling components, systems, subsystems, and modules for use in
passenger vehicles and light trucks manufactured by global OEMs. In 2008, approximately 76% of our sales consisted of original equipment
sold directly to the OEMs for installation on new vehicles. The remaining 24% of our sales were primarily to Tier I and Tier II suppliers.
Accordingly, sales of our products are directly affected by the annual vehicle production of OEMs, and in particular the production levels of the
vehicles for which we provide specific parts. In most cases, our products are custom designed and engineered for a specific vehicle platform.
Our sales and product development personnel frequently work directly with the OEMs engineering departments in the design and development
of our various products.

Although each OEM may emphasize different requirements as the primary criteria for judging its suppliers, we believe success as an automotive
supplier generally requires outstanding performance with respect to price, quality, service, performance, design and engineering capabilities,
innovation, and timely delivery. As such, we believe our continued commitment to investment in our engineering and design capability,
including enhanced computerized software design capabilities, is important to future success, and many of our present initiatives are designed to
enhance these capabilities. To remain competitive we must also consistently achieve cost savings; we believe we will continue to be successful
in our efforts to improve our engineering, design and manufacturing processes, and implement our Lean initiatives.

Our OEM sales are generally based upon purchase orders issued by the OEMs and as such we do not have a backlog of orders at any point in
time. Once selected to supply products for a particular platform, we typically supply those products for the platform life, which is normally six to
eight years, although there is no guarantee that this will occur. In addition, when we are the incumbent supplier to a given platform, we believe
we have an advantage in winning the redesign or replacement platform.

We provide parts to virtually every major global OEM for use on a multitude of different platforms. However, we generate a significant portion
of our sales from the Detroit 3-Ford, General Motors and Chrysler. For the year ended December 31, 2008, our sales to the global operations of
Ford, General Motors, and Chrysler comprised approximately 25%, 16%, and 7% of our net sales, respectively. Significant reduction of our
sales to or the loss of any one of these customers or any significant reduction in these customers market shares could have a material adverse
effect on the financial results of our company.

While approximately 48% of sales are generated in North America, our considerable market share throughout the world provides some
additional risks. Historically, our operations in Canada and Western Europe have not presented materially different risks or problems from those
we have encountered in the United States, although the cost and complexity of streamlining operations in certain European countries is greater
than would be the case in the United States. This is due primarily to labor laws in those countries
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that can make reducing employment levels more time-consuming and expensive than in the United States. We believe the risks of conducting
business in less developed markets, including Brazil, Mexico, Poland, Czech Republic, China, Korea and India are sometimes greater than in the
U.S., Canadian, and Western European markets. This is due to the potential for currency volatility, high interest, inflation rates, and the general
political and economic instability that are associated with these markets.

Business Environment and Outlook

Our business is greatly affected by the automotive build rates in North America and Europe. New vehicle demand is driven by macro-economic
and other factors such as interest rates, manufacturer and dealer sales incentives, fuel prices, consumer confidence, and employment and income
growth trends. The severe global financial crisis that started in the second half of 2008 has reduced vehicle demand to historic lows putting
severe financial stress on the entire automotive industry.

Competition in the automotive supplier industry is intense and has increased in recent years as OEMs have demonstrated a preference for
stronger relationships with fewer suppliers. There are typically three or more significant competitors and numerous smaller competitors for most
of the products we produce. However, the financial crisis and difficult industry environment is expected to result in significant consolidation
among suppliers which will provide conquest opportunities for larger global suppliers.

OEMs have shifted some research and development, design, and testing responsibility to suppliers, while at the same time shortening new
product cycle times. To remain competitive, suppliers must have state-of-the-art engineering and design capabilities and must be able to
continuously improve their engineering, design, and manufacturing processes to effectively service the customer. Suppliers are increasingly
expected to collaborate on or assume the product design and development of key automotive components, and to provide value added solutions
under more stringent time frames.

Pricing pressure has continued as competition for market share has reduced the overall profitability of the industry and resulted in continued
pressure on suppliers for price concessions. The market shares of the Detroit 3 has declined in recent years and may continue to decline in the
future. This pricing pressure along with the current financial crisis will continue to drive our focus on reducing our overall cost structure through
lean initiatives, capital redeployment, restructuring and other cost management processes.

In addition to the cost-reduction actions taken through the end of the year ended December 31, 2008 which are described under Restructuring
beginning on page 41, on March 26, 2009, the Company announced the implementation of a comprehensive plan involving the discontinuation
of its global product line operating divisions, formerly called the Body & Chassis Systems division and the Fluid Systems division, and the
establishment of a new operating structure organized on the basis of geographic regions. The Company will now operate from two divisions,
North America and International (covering Europe, South America and Asia). This new operating structure allows the Company to maintain its
full portfolio of global products and provide unified customer contact points, while better managing its operating costs and resources in severe
industry conditions. It will result in a reduction in the Company s worldwide salaried workforce of approximately 20 percent.

In the year ended December 31, 2008, our business was negatively impacted by reduced OEM production volumes as a result of several factors,
including a prolonged strike at a major Tier One supplier and high oil prices in the first half of the year, but most significantly due to overall
negative macroeconomic conditions in the second half of the year. These included disruptions in the financial markets which limited access to
credit, a significant decline in the demand for and production of passenger cars and light trucks and a deterioration in the financial condition of
certain of our customers. According to CSM Worldwide, actual North America and Europe light vehicle production volumes for the year ended
December 31, 2008 were 12.6 million and 20.5 million units, respectively, as compared to 15.1 million and 21.7 million units, respectively, for
the year ended December 31, 2007. Additionally, we continued to experience significant pricing pressure from our customers despite volume
declines. These negative impacts were partially offset by favorable foreign currency translation in the first half of 2008. Our performance in
2008 has been, and will continue to be, impacted by changes in light vehicle production volumes, platform mix, customer pricing pressures, and
the cost of raw materials.
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Results of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31,

2006 2007 2008

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Sales $2,164262 $2,511,153  $2,594,577
Cost of products sold 1,832,027 2,114,039 2,260,063
Gross profit 332,235 397,114 334,514
Selling, administration, & engineering expenses 199,739 222,134 231,709
Amortization of intangibles 31,025 31,850 30,996
Impairment charges 13,247 146,366 33,369
Restructuring 23,905 26,386 38,300
Operating profit (loss) 64,319 (29,622) 140
Interest expense, net of interest income (87,147) (89,577) (92,894)
Equity earnings 179 2,207 897
Other income (expense) 6,985 (1,055) (299)
Loss before income taxes (15,664) (118,047) (92,156)
Provision for income tax expense (benefit) (7,244) 32,946 29,295
Net loss $ (8420) $ (150,993) $ (121,451)

Year ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2007

Net Sales: Our net sales increased from $2,511.2 million in 2007 to $2,594.6 million in 2008, an increase of $83.4 million, or 3.3%. The increase
resulted primarily from the full twelve months impact of the MAPS, El Jarudo and MAP India acquisitions and favorable foreign exchange rates
($70.6 million) partially offset by lower volume. In North America, our sales decreased by $282.0 million primarily due to lower unit sales
volume partially offset by $5.8 million of favorable foreign currency translation. In our international operations, a sales increase of $365.4
million was attributable to a combination of factors including the acquisition of MAPS and MAP India, $64.8 million of favorable impact of
foreign currency translation and higher unit sales volumes partially offset by customer price concessions.

Gross Profit: Gross profit decreased $62.6 million to 12.9% of sales in 2008, as compared to 15.8% of sales in 2007. This decrease resulted
primarily from reduced North America volume, and unfavorable mix.

Operating Profit (Loss): Operating profit in 2008 was $0.1 million compared to an operating loss reported in 2007, of $29.6 million. This
increase is primarily due to the impairment charges of $146.4 million in 2007 compared to $33.4 million in 2008 partially offset by reduced
volumes, increased material costs and unfavorable foreign exchange.

Impairment Charges: In 2008, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $21.9 million in the International Fluid reporting unit of our
Global Fluid segment and an impairment charge of $1.2 million in the International Body & Chassis reporting unit of our Global Body &
Chassis segment. These charges are a result of a weakening global economy, a global decline in vehicle production volumes and changes in
product mix. Also, in 2008 the Company recorded intangible impairment charges of $2.3 million and $1.6 million related to Fluid and Body &
Chassis technology, respectively. Based on a discounted cash flow analysis it was determined that the historical cost of these intangible assets
exceeded their fair value and impairment charges were recorded. Also, in 2008 the Company recorded fixed asset impairment charges of $6.4
million.
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In 2007 we recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $142.9 million and charges of $3.5 million related to the impairment of certain intangible
assets within the North America Fluid reporting unit of our Fluid segment. These charges resulted from projected declines in anticipated
production volumes and a change in the production mix for certain key platforms in North America since the 2004 acquisition as well as the
impact of increases in material costs and customer price concessions in North America.

Interest Expense, net: Interest expense increased by $3.3 million in 2008, primarily due to increased indebtedness resulting from the acquisition
of MAPS and increased short-term borrowings.

Other Expense: Other expense was $0.3 million in 2008 as a result of foreign currency losses of $0.9 million and loss on sale of receivables of
$2.2 million, partially offset by minority interest income of $1.1 million and gain on debt repurchase of $1.7 million. Other expense of $1.1
million in 2007 was primarily a result of foreign currency losses of $0.5 million and minority interest expense of $0.6 million.

Provision for Income Tax Expense (Benefit): Income taxes in 2007 included an expense of $32.9 million for an effective rate of (27.9%) as
compared to income tax expense of $29.3 million for an effective rate of (31.8%) in 2008. Tax expense in 2008 is primarily a result of the
nondeductible nature of the goodwill impairment charge; valuation allowances recorded on tax losses and credits generated in the U.S. and
certain foreign jurisdictions; the write-off of deferred tax assets in the U.K.; the distribution of income between the U.S. and foreign sources; and
other non-recurring discrete items.

Year ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2006

Net Sales: Our net sales increased from $2,164.3 million in 2006 to $2,511.2 million in 2007, an increase of $346.9 million, or 16.0%. The
increase resulted primarily from the acquisition of MAPS and El Jarudo, favorable foreign exchange rates ($86.9 million) and higher unit sales
volume partially offset by customer price concessions. In North America, our sales increased by $67.0 million primarily due to the acquisition of
El Jarudo and $20.2 million of favorable foreign currency translation, partially offset by lower unit sales volumes and customer price
concessions. In our international operations, a sales increase of $279.9 million was attributable to a combination of factors including the
acquisition of MAPS, $66.7 million favorable impact of foreign currency translation and higher unit sales volumes partially offset by customer
price concessions.

Gross Profit: Gross profit increased $64.9 million to 15.8% of sales in 2007, as compared to 15.4% of sales in 2006. This increase resulted
primarily from the acquisition of MAPS and El Jarudo combined with the favorable impact of various cost saving initiatives and favorable
foreign exchange rates, partially offset by customer price concessions and increased material costs.

Operating Profit (Loss): Operating loss in 2007 was $29.6 million compared to an operating profit reported in 2006, of $64.3 million. This
decrease is primarily due to the impairment charges of $146.4 million and an increase in selling, administration and engineering expenses
primarily due to the acquisitions of MAPS and El Jarudo, partially offset by gross profit increase of $64.9 million.

Impairment Charges: In 2007 we recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $142.9 million and write off charges of $3.5 million related to
certain intangible assets within the North America Fluid reporting unit of our Fluid segment. These charges result from a recent and projected
decline in anticipated production volumes and a change in the production mix for certain key platforms in North America since the 2004
acquisition as well as the impact of recent increases in material costs and customer price concessions in North America. In 2006, as a result of
operating results in the Body & Chassis reportable segment, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $7.5 million and impairment charges
of $5.8 million related to certain developed technology intangible assets. The impairment was recognized in our NVH segment in 2006. During
2007 we revised our segments and the NVH segment was combined with the Sealing segment to create the Body & Chassis segment.
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Interest Expense, net: Interest expense increased by $2.4 million in 2007, primarily due to increased indebtedness resulting from the acquisition
of MAPS and amortization of issuance costs associated with such borrowings.

Other Income (Expense): Other expense was $1.1 million in 2007 as a result of foreign currency losses of $0.5 million and minority interest
expense of $0.6 million. Other income of $7.0 million in 2006 was primarily a result of a $4.1 million net gain related to the purchase of Senior
Subordinated Notes, foreign exchange gains of $3.8 million, offset by a minority interest loss of $0.9 million.

Provision for Income Tax Expense (Benefit): Income taxes changed from a benefit of $7.2 million for an effective rate 46.2% in 2006 to an
income tax expense of $32.9 million for an effective rate of (27.9%) in 2007. Tax expense in 2007 is primarily a result of the nondeductible
nature of the goodwill impairment charge; valuation allowances recorded on tax losses and credits generated in the U.S.; tax rate changes
enacted during 2007 in the Czech Republic, Canada, Germany, Spain and the United Kingdom resulting in additional expense related to the
impact of deferred taxes recorded in those jurisdictions; the distribution of income between the U.S. and foreign sources; and other non-recurring
discrete items. In 2006, the Company provided a benefit for net operating losses in the U.S. until that point when deferred tax assets exceeded
the related liabilities and the recoverability was no longer assured beyond a reasonable doubt.

Segment Results of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31,

2006 2007 2008
Sales
Body & Chassis $1,100,390 $1,317,621 $1,523314
Fluid 971,122 1,096,944 979,601
Asia Pacific (1) 92,750 96,588 91,662

$2,164,262  $2,511,153  $2,594,577

Segment profit (loss)

Body & Chassis $ (26,108) $ 33993 $ (16,919)
Fluid 19,173 (137,913) (49,556)
Asia Pacific (1) (8,729) (14,127) (25,681)

$ (15,664) $ (118,047) $ (92,156)

(1) The Asia Pacific segment consists of both Body & Chassis and Fluid products in that region with the exception of the joint venture with
Shanghai SAIC, which was purchased as part of the MAPS acquisition and the MAP India joint venture. These joint ventures are included
in the Body & Chassis segment which is in line with the internal management structure.

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2007

Body & Chassis: Sales increased $205.7 million, or 15.6%, primarily due to the MAPS and MAP India acquisitions, favorable foreign exchange
($39.5 million), partially offset by lower sales volume. Segment profit decreased by $50.9 million as the result of lower sales volume,
unfavorable sales mix, higher raw material costs and impairment charges of $5.2 million, partially offset by the acquisition of MAPS and MAP
India.

Fluid: Sales decreased $117.3 million, or 10.7%, primarily due to lower sales volume, partially offset by favorable foreign exchange ($34.1
million). Segment profit increased by $88.4 million as the result of impairment charges related to goodwill ($21.9 million), intangible assets
($2.3 million) and fixed assets
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($4.1 million), compared to 2007 impairment charges of ($146.4 million) and the favorable impact of various cost saving initiatives. These
favorable items were partially offset by reduced volumes, unfavorable sales mix, increased material costs and unfavorable foreign exchange.

Asia Pacific: Sales decreased $4.9 million, or 5.1%, primarily due to unfavorable foreign exchange ($3.0 million) and lower sales volume.
Segment loss increased by $11.6 million as a result of increased restructuring costs related to the previously announced restructuring initiative in
Australia and as a result of start-up related costs for operations in this region.

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2006

Body & Chassis: Sales increased $217.2 million, or 19.7%, primarily due to the acquisition of MAPS, higher sales volumes and favorable
foreign exchange ($47.6 million), partially offset by customer price concessions. Segment profit increased by $60.1 million as the result of
favorable impact of various cost savings initiatives and the acquisition of MAPS, partially offset by higher raw material costs and customer price
concessions.

Fluid: Sales increased $125.8 million, or 13.0%, primarily due to the acquisition of El Jarudo, the full year impact of the FHS acquisition, higher
sales volumes, and favorable foreign exchange ($37.5 million), partially offset by customer price concessions. Segment profit decreased by
$157.1 million as the result of impairment charges related to goodwill in the North America reporting unit ($142.9 million), and intangible assets
($3.5 million), customer price concessions, higher raw material costs, and increased restructuring costs ($4.3 million). Such items were partially
offset by the inclusion of El Jarudo, favorable foreign exchange, and the favorable impact of various cost savings initiatives.

Asia Pacific: Sales increased $3.8 million, or 4.1%, primarily due to favorable foreign exchange ($1.8 million) and higher sales volume, partially
offset by customer price concessions. Segment loss increased by $5.4 million as a result of start up related costs for operations in this region,
partially offset by the favorable impact of various cost savings initiatives.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have provided a guarantee of a portion of the bank loans made to NISCO, our joint venture with Nishikawa Rubber Company. This debt
guarantee is required of the partners by the joint-venture agreement and serves to support the credit-worthiness of NISCO. On July 1, 2003,
NISCO entered into an additional bank loan with the joint venture partners each guaranteeing an equal portion of the amount borrowed. In
accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, guarantees meeting the characteristics described in the Interpretation are required to be recorded at fair
value. We did not have any exposure under the guarantee arrangements at December 31, 2008.

As a part of its working capital management, the Company sells certain foreign receivables through third party financial institutions without
recourse. The amount sold varies each month based on the amount of underlying receivables and cash flow needs of the Company.

At December 31, 2008, the Company had $43.5 million of receivable outstanding under receivables transfer agreements entered into by various
foreign locations. The Company incurred losses on the sale of the receivables for the year ended December 31, 2008 of $2.2 million and is
recorded in other income (expense) in the consolidated statements of operations. The Company is continuing to service receivables for one of the
locations. These are permitted transactions under the Company s credit agreement. The Company is also pursuing similar arrangements in
various locations.

As of December 31, 2008 we had no other material off-balance sheet arrangements.
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Operating Activities: Cash flow provided by operations was $136.5 million in 2008, which included $55.6 million of changes in operating assets
and liabilities. Cash flow provided by operations was $185.4 million in 2007, which included $9.9 million of changes in operating assets and
liabilities.

Investing Activities: Cash used in investing activities was $73.9 million in 2008, which primarily consisted of $92.1 million of capital spending
partially offset by gross proceeds of $8.6 million from a sale-leaseback transaction and $4.8 million of proceeds from the sale of fixed assets.
This compared to $260.0 million in 2007, which primarily consisted of acquisition cost of $158.7 million related to the acquisition of El Jarudo,
MAPS, and MAP India, capital spending of $107.3 million, less $4.8 million received from a sale-leaseback transaction. We anticipate that we
will spend approximately $60.0 million to $70.0 million on capital expenditures in 2009.

Financing Activities: Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $14.1 million in 2008, which consisted primarily of net increase of
short-term debt, partially offset by, normal debt payments and repurchase of bonds as compared to net cash provided by financing activities of
$55.0 million in 2007. The 2007 cash provided by financing activities was primarily comprised of proceeds from issuance of acquisition-related
debt of $60.0 million, proceeds from issuance of stock of $30.0 million and a net increase of short term debt of $6.2 million, partially offset by
normal debt repayments and voluntary prepayments on our term loans of $37.6 million and $3.1 million of debt issuance costs.

Since the consummation of the 2004 Acquisition, we have been significantly leveraged. As of December 31, 2008, we have $1,144.1 million
outstanding in aggregate indebtedness, with an additional $30.1 million of borrowing capacity available under our revolving credit facilities
(after giving effect to outstanding borrowings of $60.9 million and $24.0 million of standby letters of credit). During the first quarter of 2009,
we have drawn substantially all of the revolving credit facilities balance that was available as of December 31, 2008. Our future liquidity
requirements will likely be significant, primarily due to debt service obligations. Future debt service obligations may include required
prepayments from annual excess cash flows, as defined, under our senior credit agreement commencing with the year ended December 31, 2009,
which would be due 5 days after the filing of the Form 10-K, or in connection with specific transactions, such as certain asset sales and the
incurrence of debt not permitted under the senior credit agreement.

On December 24, 2008, the Company unwound one of the interest rate swaps which resulted in a cash settlement on January 2, 2009 of $9.9
million including accrued interest of $0.4 million to the counterparty that required, per the ISDA ( International Swap Dealers Association, Inc. )
that covered the swap contract, to terminate the swap upon the Company s credit rating falling below B3.

Senior Credit Facilities. In connection with the 2004 Acquisition, Cooper-Standard Holdings Inc., Cooper-Standard Automotive Inc. and
Cooper-Standard Automotive Canada Limited entered into a Credit Agreement with various lending institutions, Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas, as administrative agent, Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as syndication agent, and Goldman Sachs Credit Partners, L.P., UBS
Securities LLC and The Bank of Nova Scotia, as co- documentation agents (with subsequent amendments thereto, and with related agreements,
the Senior Credit Facilities ). The Senior Credit Facilities consist of revolving credit facilities and term loan facilities.

Our revolving credit facilities provide for loans in a total principal amount of up to $125.0 million with a maturity of 2010. Lehman Commercial
Paper, Inc. (LCPI) had a $10.0 million commitment to the Company as part of our $125.0 million revolving credit facility. Recently LCPI filed
for bankruptcy protection and the revolver availability was effectively reduced by their position, therefore the revolving credit facility currently
provides for borrowing up to $115.0 million. The Company is seeking to have this commitment replaced by another financial institution.

The Senior Credit Facilities include a Term Loan A facility of the Canadian dollar equivalent of $51.3 million with a maturity of 2010, a Term
Loan B facility of $115.0 million with a maturity of December 2011 and a Term Loan C facility of $185.0 million with a maturity of December
2011. The term loans were used to fund the 2004 Acquisition. As described below the Company also has a Term Loan D and Term Loan E as
part of its Senior Credit Facilities.
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The borrowings under the Senior Credit Facilities denominated in US dollars bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, at our or
the Canadian Borrower s option, as applicable, either (a) a base rate determined by reference to the higher of (1) the prime rate of Deutsche Bank
Trust Company Americas (or another bank of recognized standing reasonably selected by Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas) and (2) the
federal funds rate plus 0.5% or (b) LIBOR rate determined by reference to the costs of funds for deposits in US dollars for the interest period
relevant to such borrowing adjusted for certain additional costs. Borrowings under the Senior Credit Facilities denominated in Canadian dollars
bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, at the Canadian Borrower s option, either (a) an adjusted Canadian prime rate
determined by reference to the higher of (1) the prime rate of Deutsche Bank AG, Canada Branch for commercial loans made in Canada in
Canadian dollars and (2) the average rate per annum for Canadian dollar bankers acceptances having a term of 30 days that appears of Reuters
Screen CDOR Page plus 0.75% or (b) bankers acceptances rate determined by reference to the average discount rate on bankers acceptances as
quoted on Reuters Screen CDOR Page or as quoted by certain Canadian reference lenders.

In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the Senior Credit Facilities, we are required to pay a commitment fee to the lenders
under the revolving credit facilities in respect of the unutilized commitments thereunder at a rate equal to 0.50% per annum. We also pay
customary letter of credit fees.

The Term Loan B facility and the Term Loan C facility amortize each year in an amount equal to 1% per annum in equal quarterly installments
for the first six years and nine months, with the remaining amount payable on the date that is seven years from the date of the closing of the
Senior Credit Facilities. During 2007 we made voluntary prepayments totaling $15.0 million on the Term Loan B facility and $7.0 million on the
Term Loan C facility. The Term Loan A facility amortizes in equal quarterly installments of C$1.538 million in 2005 and 2006, C$2.308 million
in 2007 and 2008, and C$3.846 million in 2009 and 2010.

On February 6, 2006, in conjunction with the closing of the FHS acquisition, we amended our Senior Credit Facilities and closed on Term Loan
D with a notional amount of $215.0 million. The amount of the additional term loan was based on the purchase price of the acquisition and
anticipated transaction costs. Term Loan D matures on December 23, 2011 and carries terms and conditions similar to those found in the
remainder of our Term B and C Facilities. Term Loan D was structured as two tranches, $190.0 million borrowed in U.S. dollars, and

20.7 million borrowed in Euros. The financing was split between currencies to take into consideration the value of the European assets acquired
in the FHS transaction.

On July 26, 2007, the Company entered into the Second Amendment to the Credit Agreement (the Second Amendment ). The Second
Amendment permitted the MAPS acquisition and allows the Company to borrow up to  65.0 million through an incremental term loan under the
Credit Agreement (as amended) to provide a portion of the funding necessary for the MAPS Acquisition and to pay related fees and expenses.
The Second Amendment also expands the dual currency borrowing sub limit under the Revolving Credit Agreement to $35.0 million and adds
Cooper-Standard International Holdings BV as a permitted borrower under this sub limit. The Second Amendment includes other changes which
increase the Company s financial and operating flexibility, including amended financial covenants, expanded debt and investment baskets, and
the ability to include the results of our non-consolidated joint ventures in the covenant calculations, among other things.

To finance part of the MAPS acquisition the Company borrowed 44.0 million under the Second Amendment discussed above. This borrowing
was combined with the Euro tranche of the Term Loan D to create Term Loan E and as of December 31, 2007 had an outstanding balance of

64.1 million. The Company also borrowed $10.0 million under the Primary Revolving Credit Agreement, which was repaid in its entirety by
September 30, 2007. In addition the Company borrowed 15.0 million under the dual-currency sub limit of the revolver, which was repaid in its
entirety as of December 31, 2007.

On December 18, 2008, the Company entered into a Third Amendment to the Credit Agreement (the Third Amendment ). The Third Amendment
provides that the Company and/or its Canadian subsidiary may
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voluntarily prepay up to a maximum of $150.0 million of one or more tranches of its term loan debt under the Credit Agreement held by
participating lenders at a discount price to par to be determined pursuant to certain auction procedures. The prepayments may be financed with
cash of the Company and its Subsidiaries if they meet, on a consolidated basis, certain conditions set forth in the Third Amendment including a
$125.0 million minimum liquidity requirement (which amount includes cash and cash equivalents and any amounts available to be drawn under
the Credit Agreement s revolving credit facility). Such prepayments may not be made from the proceeds of loans drawn under the Credit
Agreement s revolving credit facility. The prepayments may also be financed with the proceeds of certain equity contributions from holders of
equity of the Company. Under the terms of the Third Amendment, any such prepayments will reduce the amount of term loans outstanding and
payable in indirect order of maturity.

The Senior Credit Facilities contain a number of covenants that, among other things, restrict, subject to certain exceptions, our ability, and the
ability of our subsidiaries, to sell assets; incur additional indebtedness or issue preferred stock; repay other indebtedness (including the notes);
pay certain dividends and distributions or repurchase our capital stock; create liens on assets; make investments, loans, or advances; make
certain acquisitions; engage in mergers or consolidations; enter into sale and leaseback transactions; engage in certain transactions with
affiliates; amend certain material agreements governing our indebtedness, including the exchange notes; and change the business conducted by
us and our subsidiaries

Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes

Our outstanding 7% Senior Notes due 2012 (the Senior Notes ) were issued under an Indenture, dated December 23, 2004 (the Senior Indenture ).

Our 83/8% Senior Subordinated Notes (the Senior Subordinated Notes ) were also issued under an Indenture, dated December 23, 2004 (the
Subordinated Indenture and, together with the Senior Indenture, the Indentures ). During 2006 we repurchased $19.5 million notional amount of

our Senior Subordinated Notes for $14.9 million. During 2008 we repurchased $7.2 million notional amount of our Senior Subordinated notes

for $5.3 million.

Interest on the Senior Notes accrues at the rate of 7% per annum and is payable semiannually in arrears on June 15 and December 15,
commencing on June 15, 2005. The Company makes each interest payment to the holders of record of the Senior Notes on the immediately
preceding June 1 and December 1.

Interest on the Senior Subordinated Notes accrues at the rate of 8 3/8% per annum and is payable semiannually in arrears on June 15 and
December 15, commencing on June 15, 2005. The Company makes each interest payment to the holders of record of the Senior Subordinated
Notes on the immediately preceding June 1 and December 1.

The indebtedness evidenced by the Senior Notes (a) is unsecured senior indebtedness of the Company, (b) ranks pari passu in right of payment
with all existing and future senior indebtedness of the Company, and (c) is senior in right of payment to all existing and future Subordinated
Obligations (as used in respect of the Senior Notes) of the Company. The Senior Notes are also effectively subordinated to all secured
indebtedness and other liabilities (including trade payables) of the Company to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness,
and to all indebtedness of its Subsidiaries (other than the subsidiaries that guarantee the Senior Notes).

The Indebtedness evidenced by the Senior Subordinated Notes is unsecured senior subordinated indebtedness of the Company, is subordinated
in right of payment, as set forth in the Subordinated Indenture, to the prior payment in full in cash or temporary cash investments when due of all
existing and future senior indebtedness of the Company, including the Company s obligations under the Senior Notes and the Credit Agreement,
ranks pari passu in right of payment with all existing and future senior subordinated indebtedness of the Company, and is senior in right of
payment to all existing and future Subordinated Obligations (as used in respect of the Senior Subordinated Notes) of the Company. The Senior
Subordinated Notes are also effectively subordinated to any secured indebtedness of the Company to the extent of the value of the assets
securing such indebtedness, and to all indebtedness and other liabilities (including trade payables) of the Company s subsidiaries (other than the
subsidiaries that guarantee the Senior Subordinated Notes).
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Under each Indenture, upon the occurrence of any change of control (as defined in each Indenture), unless the Company has exercised its right to
redeem all of the outstanding Notes of each holder of Notes of the applicable series shall have the right to require that the Company repurchase
such noteholder s Notes of such series at a purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof on the date of purchase plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase (subject to the right of the applicable Noteholders of record on the relevant record

date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date). The change of control purchase feature of the Notes may in certain

circumstances make more difficult or discourage a sale or takeover of the Company and, thus, the removal of incumbent management.

The Credit Agreement provides that the occurrence of certain change of control events with respect to us would constitute a default thereunder.
The Company, its directors, officers, employees or affiliates may, from time-to-time, purchase or sell Senior Notes or Senior Subordinated Notes
on the open market, subject to limits as specified in the Credit Agreement and, with respect to purchases of Senior Subordinated Notes, limits in
the Senior Indenture.

The Indentures limit our (and most or all of our subsidiaries ) ability to:

incur additional indebtedness;

pay dividends on or make other distributions or repurchase our capital stock;

make certain investments;

enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates;

use assets as security in other transactions; and

sell certain assets or merge with or into other companies.
Subject to certain exceptions, the Indentures permit us and our restricted subsidiaries to incur additional indebtedness, including secured
indebtedness.

Our compliance with certain of the covenants contained in the Indentures and in our Credit Agreement is determined based on financial ratios
that are derived using our reported EBITDA, as adjusted for certain items described in those agreements. We refer to EBITDA as adjusted under
the Credit Agreement as Consolidated EBITDA . The Credit Agreement provides, among other covenants, for a maximum Senior Secured
Leverage Ratio as of specified dates, which means the ratio of the Company s total senior secured indebtedness on such date, as defined in the
agreement, to the Company s Consolidated EBITDA for the period of four consecutive fiscal quarters ended on such date. The breach of such
covenants in our Credit Agreement could result in a default thereunder and the lenders could elect to declare all amounts borrowed due and
payable. Any such acceleration would also result in a default under the Indentures. Additionally, under our Credit Agreement and Indentures,
our ability to engage in activities such as incurring additional indebtedness, making investments, and paying dividends is limited, with
exceptions that are either partially tied to similar financial ratios (in the case of the Indentures) or are based on negotiated carveouts and baskets
(in the case of the Credit Agreement).

We believe that the inclusion of supplementary adjustments to EBITDA applied in presenting Consolidated EBITDA is appropriate to provide
additional information to investors to demonstrate compliance with our financing covenants. However, EBITDA and Consolidated EBITDA are
not recognized terms under GAAP and do not purport to be alternatives to net income as a measure of operating performance. Additionally,
EBITDA and Consolidated EBITDA are not intended to be measures of free cash flow for management s discretionary use, as they do not
consider certain cash requirements such as interest payments, tax payments, debt service requirements, and capital expenditures. Because not all
companies use identical calculations, these presentations of EBITDA and Consolidated EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures of other companies.
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The following table reconciles net income to EBITDA and pro forma Consolidated EBITDA under the Credit Agreement (dollars in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2007 2008
Net loss $ 8.4) $ (151.0) $ (121.5)
Provision for income tax expense (benefit) (7.2) 32.9 29.3
Interest expense, net of interest income 87.1 89.6 92.9
Depreciation and amortization 138.4 136.0 140.1
EBITDA $ 209.9 $ 107.5 $ 140.8
Restructuring @ 23.9 26.4 30.6
Foreign exchange (gain) loss = 2.9) (0.1) 0.1
Inventory write-up® 2.1 2.5
Transition and integration costs® 1.4 1.5 0.5
Product remediation® 2.9
Net gain on bond repurchase©® 4.1) 1.7)
Canadian voluntary retirement 1.8
Claim reserve” 1.8 (0.6)
Impairment charges® 13.2 146.4 36.0
Other 1.5 2.7
248.2 285.7 210.2
Pro forma adjustments related to FHS L) 4.4
Pro forma adjustments related to El Jarudo 1o 1.7
Pro forma adjustments related to MAPS an 342
Pro forma adjustments related to MAP India = 2.7
EBITDA adjustment related to other joint ventures - 8.0 11.1
Pro forma adjustments related to product line organization discontinuance a® 19.4
Consolidated EBITDA $ 252.6 $ 3323 $ 240.7

(1) Includes non-cash restructuring charges.

(2) Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) loss on acquisition-related indebtedness.

(3) Write-ups of inventory to fair value at the dates of the 2004 Acquisition, acquisition of FHS, and acquisition of MAPS.

(4) Transition and integration costs related to the acquisition of FHS in 2006 and MAPS & El Jarudo in 2007